












Dear Zoning Board, 

We live at 163 Gedney Road, a couple houses east of Lawrenceville Road, in the R-4 zoning 
district.  The neighborhood consists of older, single-family homes, with varying lot sizes.  Most 
properties have detached garages and/or sheds at the rear of the property.  Many of these 
accessory structures are non-compliant with the current zoning requirements for the R-4 district 
as they are sited within the minimum setback areas.  Our property is no different.  In fact, many 
aspects of our property are non-compliant with respect to the current zoning ordinance.  For 
example (non-compliant standards are bolded): 

Bulk Standard Required Existing 
Minimum Lot Area 7,500 sf 8,750 sf 
Minimum Lot Frontage 60 ft 50 ft 
Minimum Front Yard 30 ft 40.67 ft 
Minimum Side Yard 10 ft 5 ft 
Minimum Rear Yard 35 ft 1.67 ft 
Max. Impervious Surface Ratio .60 37.3 
Accessory Building Setback 
For lots < 15,000 sf 

5 ft 1.67 ft 

 

Our existing garage is located 1’-8” from the rear property line and about 5’-4” from one of the side 
property lines, and many of our neighbors have a similar condition.  Additionally, our house is also 
only 5 feet from our eastern side property line.  We have a 6’ wooden fence around our backyard. 

 To provide more usable outdoor space for our family, we considered purchasing a pergola 
kit to install in the back of our yard near the garage.  After shopping around, we decided it was best 
to build our own.  Unfortunately, when we made this decision, we did not seek zoning approval.  I 
personally built the pergola and associated deck in 2022. In order to fit the pergola within the yard 
and around the existing trees, we used our garage as a gauge to help site the structure.  With the 
garage only 1’-8” from the property line, we assumed the pergola and deck could be close to our 
property lines.  The pergola and deck are approximately 2’-5” from the rear property line, and 2’-
11” from the side property line adjacent to our neighbor’s garage.  The deck is located at grade 
with no step up from the surrounding yard.  The pergola has a simple shed roof with the high point 
facing the interior of our property with a high point of about 11’-0” and the low point around 8’-10”. 

 We are seeking a variance for the setback of the pergola and deck. In review of the 
Lawrence Township zoning ordinance, our understanding is that accessory buildings and uses are 
required to have a setback of 5 feet for lots less than 15,000 square feet. However, in reading 
section 429 (C) Decks/Patios, it notes: 

“For single family dwellings, any deck or patio shall be at least 15' from any property line or the 
allowable principal setback, whichever is the lesser.”   



We believe this means the deck and pergola are required to be 15’ from the rear property line, and 
10’ from the side property line per the Minimum Side Yard setback in the R-4 district.  As such, we 
are requesting a variance for a rear yard setback for the deck and pergola as they intrude into the 
15’ setback by 12’-7”; and are requesting a variance for a side yard setback for the deck and 
pergola as they intrude into the 10’ setback by 7’-1”. 

 As seen on the attached photo, the pergola and associated deck are nestled into the back 
of the yard with the pergola in the corner of the property.  The scale of the pergola structure is in 
keeping with the neighboring detached garages and sheds, and is constructed with pressure 
treated wood and galvanized corrugated metal roofing.  We have 6-foot-tall wooden fences at the 
property line and the space is visually screened from neighbors by the fence as well as landscape. 

 We are hopeful of receiving zoning approval for these variances given the built condition of 
the pergola and deck do not represent a detriment to the public good, are in keeping with the 
neighborhood and other accessory structures on neighboring properties, and provide much 
utilized space for our family.  It is not possible to move the pergola or deck without deconstruction 
or demolition.  The pergola and deck have been in place since the summer of 2022.  We have 
never received complaints regarding them (on the contrary have received many compliments) and 
feel they bring great value to our family and home by increasing our usable space of our property 
regardless of the weather.   

 

We appreciate your consideration! 

Benjamin and Kristin Petrick 

 






